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St. Paul's Episcopal Church 1853
Hillsboro

Public

St. Paul's is located in the town of Hillsboro at the head of
navigation on the Tuckahoe Creek. The Church is a small board and batten
Gothic Revival building constructed in 1853. Its design is based upon
Richard Upjohn's book of plans and sketches called Upjohn's Rural
Architecture, published in 1852. Another church building similar to
St. Paul's existed in Greensboro until a few years ago. St. Andrew's,
Sudlersville, is another similar board and batten structure.

St. John's Parish was formed in 1748 by act of the Maryland Assembly.
The first church was located in Queen Anne's County, but in 1768 a
new church was built on this site. Rev. William Goldsborough was
assigned the parish in 1842; and under his leadership, there was a
renewed interest in the parish. Between 1850-53, the parish raised
enough money to build the present Church. It was not until a year
after Rev. Goldsborough's death, in 1858, that the Church was conse-
crated.

St. Paul's has been beautifully preserved through the efforts
of the community in the 1960's.
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‘ Located in Hillsbore, one block south of altsrnate Maryland
40%, is St. Paul's Episcopal Church, an excellent example of
Gothic Revival. Its cornesrsione lald in 1853, St. Paul's was
consecrated in 1858. Constructed of board and batten 51d1ng,
painted gray, it sits on a brick foundation, its steep roof
covered with wood shingles. A small enurhnce porch is sit-
uated in the west bay of the north side. On the east and west
sides of the porch are small lancet windows with leaded stained
glass. The double door has three panels in each half, ths top
one being a pointed arch panel. East of the entrance are two )
stained glass lancet windows in the nave with two smaller win-
dows on the north side of the chancel.

The west end has two stainad glass lancet windows betwsen
which, centersd in the gable, is an oval window with the larger]

“axis on the vertical. A guatrefoil pattern is cut out of the |
barge boards on this end and the east gable of the chancel. 1
At the peak of the west gable is a belfry still holding the
original bell.

The south side_of.the nave has four lancest windows, two
close together near the center and two near the east and vest
corners. Between the west window and the west corner is a
tall, narrow red brick chimney with a brick, arched hood.

- Attached to the south side of the chancel is a shed-roofed
vestry room. It has a Gothic-arch door with a small hood
above it on the west side. To the rignt of the door is a
lancet windecw divided horizontally intc four lights. Thare are
two identical windows on the south side.

On the east end of the chancel is a large Gothic windcw,
with tracery dividing it into three narrow lancets, dated 1857.
There is a single lancet window on the east side of the vestry
room.

The nave of the church has a center aisle with box pevs,
most of which are oricinal, on both sides. The pew ends have
a single, recessed Gothic- arch panel. On both the north and
south walls are four equ a’ly spaced bracketed posts with cham-~
fered edges. The rafters in the nave are supported by a
collar beam resting on which are two braces forming a "V".

In the chancel the rafters are supported by crossed braces.

All of these ars exposed. Across the chancel is a railing with

a quatrefoil pattern. The arch separating the chancel from

the nave also has chamfered edges.

Near the center of the west wall are two vertical beans
which extend the full height of the roof and support the bsl-
fry on the exterior.

The church also ratains the original baptismal font and :

its silver communion service.
o St. Paul's has bzen verv successfullv restored and is well
maintained. To the scutlh: and east of the church is a small
cenetary. Along the north side of the yard, paralleling

the street, iz a wronght Irton fencs with eraccses on top of the
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In the 1840's and 1850's, the Gothic Revival as esp®used -
by the ecclesiological movement in England became widelv ac-
cepted and practiced in the linited States. Individual arch-
itects designed churches following the -rules for church arch-
itecture established By the 2301381010g1ca1 Society in England.
Some of them published books of their designs so that parishes
could build in the "accepted"” style without the expense of an
architect. 8St. Paul's Church, Hillsboro, is valuable as an
example of the attractive and practical buildings that could
be executed by the'local craftsmen from these published plans
and drawings.

St. Paul's is a church of St. John's Pa r1Qh in the Episco-
pal Diocese of Maryland. The parish, lying in Caroline, Cueen
Anne's and Talbot Counties, was formed in 1748 by an act of
the Marvland Assenblv. The parish chuech, at that time, was
in Queen Anne's County not far from Hillsboro, then known as
Tuckahos Bridge. In 1768, a new church was built on this site,
the old one having detsriorated too much to be repaired. In
the early 19th century, the church was once again in "a very
ruinous State", owing to the growing strength of Methodism on
the Eastern Shore.

With the coming of the Reverend Pobert William Goldsborough
in 1842, the parish once again began to thrive. Born nearby
at Fyrtle Grove in Talbot County, Goldsborough attended sem-
1nary in Mew York. He was assigned to St. John's Parish as a
missionary to revive its lagging membership. Apparently he
succeeded, earning the respect and love of the parishioners.
vhen he died in 1857 his successor reported that the congrega-
tion had by then grewn to a good size.

Rev. Go]danorougﬁ'" rejuVenating effect on the parish was
such that in 1850 he could write that "the desire for the ve-
newal of the cld church was strong, and that manv whose
ancestors had worshipred within its walls began to show a 11?
ing toward its venerable ruin."2 Together these people -
1. "Bishons Create Association to Save &t. Johnm's Church,”

County Record (Denton, Maryland), December 7, 1$566.

2. "Bichons Create,” Cauntvy Recnrd.
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8. Significance-continuation

and their minister raised enough monev to build a new church.

The cornarstone was laid for this in 1853. In that same vear
the partly constructed building was much damased in a winds;ovn,
but the work was continued and the finished church cor:szcrated in

1858.

St. Paul's Church was built in the Gothic Nevival style
comnon to the ecclesi oloblsL—*n‘luenced Foiscenal C wurceh in the
1850's The design was taken from Richard iUbiohn's book of plans
and sketches callec Upiohn's Rural Architecturz, which was oub-
lished in 1852: This book inciuded "drawi for g small mission

o

church, a chapel, a parsonage, and a scho
description of the church deu,wr is given
his biographv of thz archite

v fverard Upiohn in
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vt $3,000, the exact

Tha church, estimated to co b
i) al conditions, would

(73

g

sum naturallv denending cn
seat betwesen. 125 and 150. A simple, it wes .
churchly, and it was nrovided with a2 lateral tower,
nave, cH“hhel and robing room. The design and est-
imate includ ed all essential furniture. Tha style is
Early Enflish, with nlain lancets in the nave and a
triple lancet in the chancel. The tower, containing
a belfry, was to bz crowned with a broach soire and
shingled.... A simple pitched roof over both nave and
chancel was supported bv arched braces. Internally
the walls were to be plastered, and externally they
were to be covered with boards and battens.

This description could bes one of St. Taul's Church ex-
cept that the bell tower was not constructed. Instead, a very
Slfn‘:a'I bell cot was built on the roof at the west end of the

building. Several more minor changes were also made in the plans
as they were published. The three-part windcw in the east end of
St. Paul's is slightlv ciffersnt in design than Upjohn's. There

1s a shed-roofed veﬂtﬂv roon on the south side of the chancel

was placed where the tower was to have bzen, »ather than in the
west end of the nave. Chancaz zuch as theze ware meant to be

used as guidelines rather than strict rules.

e

3. Everard M. Upjohn, Richard Uniohn, Architect and Churchran

(Mlew York: Columbia Univerzi-v ‘“rese, Ps%)s Be LLT,
- 4. Unjohn, pp. 117-118

which 1s not present in the published plan, and the entrancs porc}

n The following

made, however, as Upnjohn develonad the sketchzs and plars to be |

GPO 327.724
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-In his book, Richard Upjoh, Architect and Churchman,
Everard M. Upjohn wrote of the churches built from Unjohn's
Rural Architecture that

Though not startlingly beautiful, they retain the
naive, quaint charm of the drawings to & surpris-
ing degraz. That fortunate result is dus to their
complete lack of oretens=2....The usually meager funds
of the parish anrd the natural tendancy of the arch-
itect alike elinminated all superflious adornment.
Stripped to their essentials, they must rely on ad-
mirable proportions and the balance of asymmatrical
masses..b .

The simple, graceful lines of St. Paul's Church, Hills-
boro, show it to be on2 such successful use of Upjohn's design.

6. Unjohn, p. 120

- 9. Major Bibliographical References-continuation

Upjohn, Everard M. Richard Uonjohn, Architect and Churchman.
New York: Columdia University Press, 1939.

g - GPO 921.724
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